
           

* * * * PUBLIC NOTICE * * * *

NOTICE OF A CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING
A WORKSHOP SESSION OF THE CITY OF CORINTH

Thursday, February 4, 2021, 5:45 P.M.
CITY HALL - 3300 CORINTH PARKWAY

  
Pursuant to Section 551.127, Texas Government Code, one or more Council Members or employees may
attend this meeting remotely using videoconferencing technology. The videoconferencing technology can be
accessed at www.cityofcorinth.com/RemoteSession. The video and audio feed of the videoconferencing
equipment can be viewed and heard by the public at the address posted above as the location of the
meeting. The City of Corinth is following the Center for Disease Control Guidelines for public meetings. 

           
CALL TO ORDER:
 

WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA

 
1. Continue the discussion on policy governance from a presentation at January 28, 2021, Council meeting.

 
2. Receive a presentation, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on the Communication Strategic

Plan. 
 

3. Receive a presentation and hold a discussion on the progress report for Technology Services.
 

4. Receive an update from TBG Partners and hold a discussion on the design, construction and promotion
of a signature community gathering space in Agora.

 
5. Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed

session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.
  

 
ADJOURN WORKSHOP SESSION
 
*NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Regular Session of the Corinth City Council to be held at Corinth City
Hall located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The agenda is as follows:
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE:
"Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible".

                                            1

http://www.cityofcorinth.com/RemoteSession


 
PRESENTATION:
 
1. Nicole Roemer, Account Manager with Community Waste Disposal (CWD) will provide their 2020

Annual Review.
 

CONSENT AGENDA
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion.
Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

 
2. Consider and act on minutes from January 14, 2021, workshop session.
 
3. Consider and act on minutes from January 14, 2021, regular session.
 

CITIZENS  COMMENTS
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will be
limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council and
may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input form if
you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be addressed
to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of Ordinance of
the City of Corinth.

 

BUSINESS AGENDA

 
4. Consider and act on Resolution No. 21-02-04-09 ordering a Joint General Election with Denton County

to be held on May 1, 2021, to fill the office of Mayor, and two Council Members for Place 2 and Place 5,
establishing procedures for that election, and providing an effective date.

 
5. Consider and act on a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas designating a central

community gathering space and related infrastructure as a venue project (the "Venue Project”) and
designating a method of financing the Venue Project, a new short-term motor vehicle rental tax at a rate
not to exceed five (5) percent, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 334 of the Texas Local
Government Code, as amended.

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates and/or
comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, in
accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct that
an item be added as a business item to any future agenda.

 

                                            2



CLOSED SESSION
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of
the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government
Code.

Section 551.071.  (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body
under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter
551.
 
Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third
person.

a. Right-of-way consisting of 1.56 acres located at 6881 South I-35E and along Dobbs Road within the H.
Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. (M/B)

b. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along Dobbs Road
within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. (F)

c. Being approximately 7 acres of land, more or less, located in the J.P. Walton Survey, Abstract No. 1389,
City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. (H)

d.  Being approximately 13 acres of land, more or less, in the North Central Texas College Addition No. 2,
Block A, Lot 1R. (N)
 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in
or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.

a. Project Agora
 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney
on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.
 
RECONVENE  IN  OPEN  SESSION  TO  TAKE  ACTION, IF NECESSARY,  ON CLOSED SESSION
ITEMS.
 
ADJOURN:
 

Posted this _____ day of ________ 2021, at __________ on the bulletin board at Corinth City Hall.

________________________________
Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City of Corinth, Texas

                                            3



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    1.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/04/2021  
Title: Policy Governance
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement &

Proactive Government
Organizational Development

AGENDA ITEM
Continue the discussion on policy governance from a presentation at January 28, 2021, Council meeting.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
A component of the city manager's goals for 2021 is the introduction and practice of governance.   The workshop is
intended to introduce policy governance to the city council (and by extension staff).  The primary focus will be
based on the work of John Carver with the acknowledgment of Peter Drucker and George Cuff.  There is not
sufficient time to cover the topic in its entirety but includes sample policies, ends discussion, and an overview of
concepts.  

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

                                            4



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    2.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/04/2021  
Title: Communication Strategic Plan
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government
Regional Cooperation
Organizational Development

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a presentation, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on the Communication Strategic Plan. 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The Communication Strategic Plan was adopted in January 2019, to enhance transparency and communication
methods with residents. The Plan outlined an overall communications' philosophy, structure, audience and
platforms.  Through consistent and engaged communication, Corinth has the ability to grow informed
participation and enhance community pride. 

The priorities identified serve as an overarching goals of the communication plan.  Each Priority is followed by
strategies and actionable tactics that can create a more engaged and  informed community. 

Priority 1:  Transparency & Accountability - Citizens perceive the city as an open, credible, and
responsible Organization
 
Priority 2: Timely & Accurate Information - Accurate, non-biased information is provided to residents in
a timely manner
 
Priority 3:  Public Engagement - Communication between residents and the City is two-way; residents
understand their input is valued and used in decisions
 
Priority 4: Tell Our Story - Define and develop a community identity, and promote the community’s
unique characteristics

As communications technology and platforms for citizen engagement continue to advance, the plan is
expected to change to meet the emerging needs. The Plan as it was adopted was a snapshot of the
City’s communication goals and objectives to achieve the goals to better serve, inform, and engage the
residents of Corinth.   

Staff will provide an overview of the communication efforts implemented in 2020 and seek council feedback to
develop the expectations for 2021.
 

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

Attachments

                                            5



Presentation 

                                            6



COMMUNICATIONS 
ANNUAL REVIEW 

JANUARY 28, 2021

                                            7



TELL OUR STORY
 EMPHASIS ON TRANSPARENCY & ACCOUNTABILITY,
 TIMELY & ACCURATE INFORMATION 
 PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

                                            8



Non-Residents
75%

591K
Description

Description

Users on the world

Description
40%

44.4K
1%      Followers

Description
4%

Non-Residents
96%

Police

Description

6,133
15%      Followers

1,546 Corinth
25%

City of Corinth

4,491
5%      Followers

687
Corinth

33%

Non-Residents
67%

Fire

Description

Community Engagement

Social 
Media

1,687 
Corinth

Description

NEXT DOOR

8,716 Followers
1,500 Average Impressions

13%
TWITTER

743 Followers 
72,500 Total Impressions

20%
INSTAGRAM

575 Followers
33 Posts

                                            9



Community Engagement

Growth

Growth

Growth

42% or 535

561 or 58%

20% or 81,071Top 5 Pages:

Top 5 Categories:

Top 5 Projects:

Cityofcorinth.com
City Website

MyCorinth
Mobile App

Mycorinth.com
Bang the Table

Utility Billing, Police, 
Permits, Municipal Court, & 
Trash & Recycling Services

Inappropriately Parked Vehicles, 
Public Streets/Sidewalks, Code 
Enforcement, Water Breaks, 
Non-Emergency Police

Covid-19, Golf Cart Survey, 
Halloween in Corinth, 
Envision Corinth 2040, Let’s 
Talk Corinth

Avg Time Spent on Site:  2 min 19 seconds
Largest User Audience: 26-34 year-old male

Avg Monthly Visits:  508
Avg Monthly Report a Concern: 93

Avg Monthly Contributors:  79

Total Visits 403,071

Total Downloads 1,235

Total Registrations 959

                                            10



 2020 Campaigns

 Covid-19

 Census 2020

 Fire District Special Election

 Broadband

 2021 Campaigns

 Agora District

 Agora Park and Event Space

 Short Term Vehicle Tax Election

 Utility Billing Platforms

Marketing Campaigns

Utility Bill Buck Slip

Lake Cities Living

MyCorinth.com

Social Media

News Release

                                            11



Tell Our Story!

20% Average Open Rate
15% Click Through Rate

Monthly Newsletter

Corinth 
Connection

News Releases

Lake Cities Living
Advertisements

20% Average Open Rate
250 New Subscribers

49.8% Average Open Rate
20.2% Click Through Rate

2 Feature Articles
1 Advertisement per  month

45% Average Open Rate

2019 2020

3 Feature Articles
1 Advertisement per  month

                                            12



• Values Based Intranet

• Created an Employee Ambassador Group

• Daily Content, News Articles and Information

• Engagement Projects

• Encourages interaction among departments.

Internal Communications

WORKVIVO-INTRANET
LAUNCHED DECEMBER 2020

                                            13



COMMUNITY EVENTS

                                            14



Drive – In Movie
130 Cars
700 Burgers
3 Vendors
2 Elves
1 Santa!

2020 Community Events

Trunk or Treat
Sponsored Special 
Edition Band 

                                            15



2021 
COMMUNITY 
EVENTS

10

EASTER 
EGG-STRAVAGANZA
March - Virtual

STATE OF THE CITY
Saturday, March 13

FISH N’FUN 
May - Virtual

PUMPKIN PALOOZA
Saturday, October 16

FIRE OPEN HOUSE
Saturday, October 23

CHRISTMAS IN CORINTH
Monday, December 6

                                            16



Pumpkin Palooza 2021

 New Website Design will “Go-Live” 
February 2021

 Two stages
 Main Stage (bands)
 Festival Stage (community)

 Corn Hole Tournament

 Event Sponsor
 Denton County Brewing Co.

 Band Line Up
 Idol Job (Reggae band)
 Lost Shaker of Salt 

(Jimmy Buffet tribute band)

                                            17



 Strong Social Media Presence

 Ambassador Program

 Video Communication and PSAs

 Revitalize Monthly Newsletter

 Develop Communication Policies

 Marketing Campaigns

 Citibot

 Multi-channel communication 
platform– web chat, interactive text 
alerts and text chat

 Digital Ready Community Program
 Create a Digital Asset Group (DAG)
 Inventory Digital Assets
 Develop a Community-wide and 

Internal digital engagement plan

What’s Next – Goals for 2021

Community Engagement Plan New Projects 

                                            18



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    3.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/04/2021  
Title: Technology Services Update
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Infrastructure Development

Organizational Development

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a presentation and hold a discussion on the progress report for Technology Services.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Technology Services has made significant strides in the past 2-3 years to better prepare itself for cyber-security
issues and be more proactive in providing services to the City and its residents. The Department will review its
recent accomplishments and highlight future service IT issues.

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

                                            19



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    4.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/04/2021  
Title: An Update and Discussion on Signature Community Gathering Space in Agora
Submitted For: Jason Alexander, Director  Submitted By: Jason Alexander, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement &
Proactive Government

AGENDA ITEM
Receive an update from TBG Partners and hold a discussion on the design, construction and promotion of a
signature community gathering space in Agora.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
One of the key priorities in the Strategic Plan, the design and construction of a signature community gathering space
in Corinth's core --- Agora --- is envisioned to complement the future commuter rail station and to catalyze
investment. Towards that end, the City has engaged TBG Partners to draft designs and construction cost estimates
for the park while soliciting feedback from the community. 

This presentation will provide an update on these efforts to date and encourage a discussion on the same.

RECOMMENDATION
N/A.

                                            20



   
    PRESENTATION ITEM    1.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/04/2021  
Title: CWD Annual Review
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government
Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Nicole Roemer, Account Manager with Community Waste Disposal (CWD) will provide their 2020 Annual Review.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
 

RECOMMENDATION
 

                                            21



   
    CONSENT ITEM    2.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/04/2021  
Title: January 14, 2021, Workshop Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from January 14, 2021, workshop session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from January 14, 2021, workshop session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of January 14, 2021, workshop session minutes.

Attachments
January 14, 2021 Workshop Session Minutes 

                                            22



 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF DENTON 
CITY OF CORINTH 
 
On this, the 14th day of January 2021, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Special Workshop Session 
at the Corinth City Hall at 5:45 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, time, place, 
and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, Government Code, with 
the following members to wit: 
 
Council Members Present: 
Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Steve Holzwarth, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present: 
Bob Hart, City Manager 
Lana Wylie, City Secretary 
Patricia Adams, Messer – Fort - McDonald 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Communications & Strategic Services Director 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning & Development Director 
Michelle Mixell, Planning & Development Manager 
Miguel Inclan, Planner 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager 
Lance Stacy, City Marshal 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 5:45 P.M. 
 
WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA: 
 
1. Hold a discussion and provide staff direction on identifying a pool of potential appointments for the Board of 

Directors for Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Number 2, City of Corinth, Texas ("TIRZ No. 2"), the 
Board of Directors for the future Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Number 3, City of Corinth, Texas 
("TIRZ No. 3"), the Board of Directors for the Corinth Economic Development Foundation ("CEDF") and the 
Board of Directors for the future Agora Municipal Management District No. 1 (the "MMD"). 

 
City Manager Hart discussed the TIRZ #2 Board of Directors, the TIRZ #3 Board of Directors, and the CEDF Board of 
Directors. After meeting with Denton County, the suggestion would be to have three members from the City Council, 
Mayor Pro Tem Burke, Council Member Garber, Council Member Holzwarth, and three members from Denton 
County, the Board of Directors for TIRZ #2. He suggested TIRZ #3 would include Mayor Heidemann, Council Member 
Henderson, Council Member Pickens, and members from the community. He  mentioned Paul Ruggiere, Lindsey 
Baker, and Tom Winterburn as possible candidates. Mayor Pro Tem Burke agreed that Ruggiere and Baker would be 
good candidates and Peggy Bush. Council Member Holzwarth suggested John Roy, previous Mayor of Hickory Creek. 
He also inquired about the responsibilities and terms. Mr. Hart stated it would involve the project plan, budget, and 
periodic 30-minute meetings, quarterly, for two years; to fulfill the statutory requirements. Council Member Garber 

                                            23



 
 

agreed with Ms. Baker serving on the TIRZ #3 Board of Directors. For the CEDF Board of Directors, Mr. Hart suggested 
James Combs of Combs Coffee or Grady Ray. The City Council may email him with their suggestions for the TIRZ #3 
Board. 
 
2. Receive a report, hold a discussion and provide staff direction on the issuance and sale of City of Corinth, 

Texas, combination tax and limited surplus revenue certificates of obligation, Series 2021. 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Communications & Strategic Services Director, reminded the City Cou ncil of the 
budgeted projects. There was approximately $12.5 million; the debt was split between $9.7 million and $2.9 million. 
The previous discussion with the City Council included raising the $2.9 million to $5 million. With the preliminary 
design work beginning for Agora, right-of-way land acquisitions within the TOD, Lynchburg Creek drainage, and bills 
that could affect how debt issuance might eliminate the city’s ability to issue certificates of obligation, requiring voter 
approval. The current interest rates are under 2%, which supports the decision to increase to $5 million. If the 
increase is approved, staff will not request debt issuance for at least one year. Ms. Bunselmeyer shared a presentation 
with the City Council. 
 

 
 

 
 

                                            24



 
 

 
Ms. Bunselmeyer shared the tax rate impact based on $2.9 and $5 million. She estimated a conservative 3% growth 
in AV value. If housing costs increase and construction growth occurs, the tax impact could reduce. If there is a 
decrease, the impact may be greater. Mayor Heidemann inquired about the Denton County Central Appraisal 
District’s (DCAD) 2020 computer problems. Ms. Bunselmeyer confirmed DCAD had implemented new software, 
resulting in a delay in receiving the tax values, which were also inaccurate. DCAD closed for the months of December 
and January to revert to their old computer system. She asked the City Council to confer and guide on the amount of 
debt issuance. Mayor Pro Tem inquired about the projects and stated that the tax rate either needs to stab ilize or 
reduce. Ms. Bunselmeyer said the dependency is determined on the schedule of the projects and the AV values, 
which increased over the past five years. Council Member Garber agreed with Mayor Pro Tem Burke and supported 
the $5 million. He is concerned with Public Works and Public Safety salaries, as they are below market value. Ms. 
Bunselmeyer stated the approved November election for the Fire District Sales Tax would shift approximately 
$500,000 within the general fund. The long-range financial from 2020 was an anomaly with SB2 with values and could 
not support the step plan. The Lake Cities are now paying their share for fire services, and for Station 3, increasing 
approximately $5 or $600,000 and that there is capacity in the General Government funds, assuming there are no 
additional programs and City Council’s priorities. Mr. Garber also inquired about the street projects for the TOD. Mr. 
Hart confirmed the projects need to be completed as a part of progressing with the TOD.  
 
City Council supports the debt issuance of $5 million and will meet on January 14, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. 
 

 

                                            25



 
 

 
 

3. Continue discussion from November 19, 2020, City Council Workshop, and provide staff with direction 
regarding the City's tree preservation ordinance.   

 
Mr. Hart began with the continuation of the city’s tree preservation program. The system, viewed holist ically, a 
system with many subsystems and the principle that if you optimize a subsystem, you will optimize the system as a 
whole. If you say you want to do everything you can to preserve the trees, the subsystem impacted may be the 
drainage. There is a balance of tree removal to support drainage. There are competing demands, which then become 
a balancing act.  
 
Michelle Mixell, Planning and Development Manager, reminded the City Council of the meeting from November 19th 
with the current practices and ordinances and challenges and areas of improvement. She discussed Ashford Park, a 
new development, and their tree preservation project. She shared the following presentation with the City Council.  
 

 

 

                                            26



 
 

 
Council Member Pickens asked if there were a 200-year-old tree that could be exempt from removal. 
Ms. Mixell deferred to Patricia Adams, City Attorney, who stated it would depend on the location and that it would 
be a higher replacement if they removed it.  Ms. Mixell asked if there should be more incentivization to preserve 
heritage trees, Council Member Pickens agreed. Ms. Mixell is seeking guidance from the City Council on the direction 
of the tree preservation program, sharing the following case studies: 
 

 
 

 

                                            27



 
 

 

 
 
 

 

                                            28



 
 

 

 

 

                                            29



 
 

 

 

 

                                            30



 
 

 

 

 
 
Council Member Pickens inquired about preserving the root system of trees that are to be saved and wanted to be 
sure the replacement tree had a minimum caliper. She also asked about a builder charging for a premium lot. Ms. 
Mixell confirmed they are writing standards and has been written this into a Planned Development. Ms. Mixell did 
not know about a premium charge for wooded lots. Council Member Garber appreciates being included in the 
process from the beginning. He encourages staff to move forward and enticement of preservation and working with 
vendors. Mayor Pro Tem Burke agrees staff is moving in the correct direction. He asked about a tree line at the back 
of the property for Ashford. Ms. Mixell was not sure due to drainage.   

                                            31



 
 

 

 

 

                                            32



 
 

 
 

 

 

                                            33



 
 

 

 

  

 
 

4. Discuss meeting items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed session items as set 
forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.  
 

Council Member Henderson inquired about Item 5 for the Amendment to the Denton County Elections Co ntract. 
Lana Wylie, City Secretary, stated the increased amount was approximately $3,600 due to the additional week of 

                                            34



 
 

early voting, increased voters, and employees. 
 

There was no closed session during the workshop session. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
The City Council convened in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of 
the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation; 
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the 
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act. 
 
Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open 
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third 
person. 
 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.  
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body 
has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near 
the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic development 
negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.  
 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City Council. 
City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on any agenda 
item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the workshop session at 6:58 P.M. 
 
AYES: 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2021.  
 
 
       
Lana Wylie, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                            35



   
    CONSENT ITEM    3.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/04/2021  
Title: January 14, 2021, Regular Session Minutes
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Citizen Engagement & Proactive

Government

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from January 14, 2021, regular session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from January 14, 2021, regular session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of January 14, 2021, regular session minutes.

Attachments
January 14, 2021 Regular Session Minutes 

                                            36



 
 

 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF DENTON 
CITY OF CORINTH 
 
On this, the 14th day of January 2021, the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, met in Special Regular 
Session at the Corinth City Hall at 7:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting 
date, time, place, and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 
551.041, Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Council Members Present: 
Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Steve Holzwarth, Council Member 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Kelly Pickens, Council Member 
 
 
Staff Members Present: 
Bob Hart, City Manager 
Lana Wylie, Interim City Secretary 
Patricia Adams, Messer – Fort – McDonald  
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance, Communications & Strategic Services Director 
Jerry Garner, Police Chief 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning & Development Director 
Michelle Mixell, Planning & Development Manager 
Miguel Inclan, Planner 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager 
Lance Stacy, City Marshal 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 
Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 7:03 P.M. The Invocation was delivered by City Manager 
Hart, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge. 
 
PRESENTATION 

1. 2020 Richard R. Lillie Texas Chapter of the American Planning Association Excellence Award 
Presentation. 

 
Helen-Eve Beadle, Planning and Development Director, shared that the City of Corinth received the 
Richard R. Lillie Planning Excellence Award from the American Planning’s Association Texas Chapter for 
the second consecutive year. The award recognizes planning excellence in municipalities throughout the 
State. Evaluation criteria include the training of Planning Commissioners and professional staff, 
professional qualifications of the planning staff, breadth and currency of master plan components, and 
completion of other planning related projects. The goals of the program include: 

• Increasing community awareness of the importance of planning 
• Recognizing planning departments that meet certain professional requirements 

                                            37



 
 

 
 

• Recognizing planning efforts that have achieved community support 
• Encouraging the funding of professional training for Planning Commissioners and staff  
• Aiding economic development and community image. 

The City of Corinth first earned this award in 2019. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one 
motion. Should the Mayor, a Council Member, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will 
be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

2. Consider and act on minutes from the December 17, 2020, workshop session. 
3. Consider and act on minutes from the December 17, 2020, regular session. 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on Resolution No. 21-01-14-01, a resolution of the City 

of Corinth, Texas approving an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for Cooperative Purchasing 
with the City of Midlothian, Texas in accordance with Chapter 791 of the Texas Government 
Code and Chapter 271 of the Texas Local Government Code to avoid duplicative procurement 
efforts and to obtain volume purchasing; authorizing the City Manager to execute the 
Agreement and any related documents as required by the Agreement; and providing an 
effective date.  

5. Consider and act on an Amendment to the fees for the Joint Election Contract with Denton 
County for the General and Special Elections held on November 3, 2020. 

6. Consider and act on the ratification of a contract for architectural services between the City of 
Corinth and TBG Partners relating to designing landscaping and construction plans for a 
signature park in Agora for an amount not to exceed $171,296.00.  

7. Consider authorizing the appraisal the streetlight system within the city.   
 
Council Member Henderson – Move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Mayor Pro Tem Burke 
seconded the motion.  
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS: 
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments 
will be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the 
Council and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a 
Public Input form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the 
Council shall be addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 
30.041B Code of Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 

There were no citizen comments. 
 
 

                                            38



 
 

 
 

BUSINESS AGENDA: 
 

8. Consider and act upon the Alternative Compliance Application for tree preservation on ±2.627 
acres located at the southeast corner of Lake Sharon Drive and Tower Ridge Drive and just west 
of I-35 Frontage Road. (Magnolia Center #AC20-0002) 

 
Ms. Mixell, Planning and Development Manager shared a presentation with the City Council for the 
Magnolia Center Alternative Compliance Application for tree preservation.  
 

 

 

                                            39



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

                                            40



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

                                            41



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

                                            42



 
 

 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Burke - Move to approve the Alternative Compliance Application for tree preservation on 
±2.627 acres located at the southeast corner of Lake Sharon Drive and Tower Ridge Drive and just west of 
I-35 Frontage Road. (Magnolia Center #AC20-0002). Council Member Pickens seconded the motion. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

9. Consider and act on Resolution No. 21-01-14-02 to make appointments to the Board of Directors 
for Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Number Two, City of Corinth, Texas (TIRZ No.2). 

 
City Manager Hart shared this was discussed during the workshop session and pertained to the 
agreement entered with Denton County for the TIRZ #2. 
 
Council Member Henderson - Move to approve Resolution No.21-01-14-02 to make appointments to the 
Board of Directors for Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Number Two, City of Corinth Texas 
(TIRZ No.2). The Board Members are Michael Talley, Daniel Peugh, Kelly Sayre, Mayor Pro Tem Burke, 
Council Member Garber, and Council Member Holzwarth. Mayor Pro Tem Burke seconded the motion. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
10. Consider and act on Resolution No. 21-01-14-03 establishing the city's legislative agenda and 

priorities for the 87th Session of the Texas Legislature to include special called sessions and the 
interim and providing for an effective date. 

 
City Manager Hart requested adoption of a resolution outlining the legislative priority position. It is used 
as a communication measure for the members of the legislature. The content is derived from the Texas 
Municipal League and the North Texas Commission. He shared some of the item’s legislation will review. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Burke - Move to approve Resolution No.21-01-14-03 establishing the city’s legislative 
agenda and priorities for the 87th Session of the Texas Legislature to include special called sessions and 
the interim and providing for an effective date. Council Member Henderson seconded the motion. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Holzwarth, Henderson, Pickens 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
The purpose of this section is to allow each Council Member the opportunity to provide general updates 

                                            43



 
 

 
 

and/or comments to fellow Council Members, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, 
in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Council Member may direct 
that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 
 
Ms. Henderson thanked Mr. Alexander, Economic Development Director and the City Council for the sign 
for the Lake Cities Chamber. She also shared a ‘save the date’ for Denton County Day’s virtual event, 
tentatively for February 25th.  
 
City Manager Hart shared the City has eleven employees out with Covid-19.  
 

Mayor Heidemann recessed the Regular Session at 7:29 P.M.  
And immediately convened into Closed Session.  

 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
The City Council will convene in closed session to consider any matters regarding matters pursuant to 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or 
contemplated litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to 
the government body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas 
clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
a. Flood mitigation right of entry - ±38.825 acres located at 2455 Silver Meadow Lane, Corinth, Texas 

76208. 
 
Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in 
an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in 
negotiations with a third person. 
 
a. Right-of-way consisting of 1.56 acres located at 6881 South I-35E and along Dobbs Road within the 

H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. (M/B) 
 

b. Right-of-way consisting of .198 acres located at 6801 S I-35E and 3404 Dobbs Road along Dobbs 
Road within the H. Garrison Survey, Abstract No. 507, within the City of Corinth, Denton County, 
Texas. (F)  

 
c. Being approximately 7 acres of land, more or less, located in the J.P. Walton Survey, Abstract No. 

1389, City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas (H).  
 

d. Being approximately 13 acres of land, more or less, in the North Central Texas College Addition 
No. 2, Block A, Lot 1R (N). 
 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, 
discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer 
or employee. 
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have 
locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental 

                                            44



 
 

 
 

body is conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other 
incentive to a business prospect. 
 
a. Project Agora 
 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City 
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney 
on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 
 

Mayor Heidemann recessed Closed Session at 7:37 P.M.,  
And immediately reconvened back into regular session at 7:37 P.M. 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 7:37 P.M. 
 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of     2021.  
 
       
Lana Wylie, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

                                            45



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    4.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/04/2021  
Title: Resolution Ordering a Joint General Election
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Lana Wylie, City Secretary
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on Resolution No. 21-02-04-09 ordering a Joint General Election with Denton County to be held
on May 1, 2021, to fill the office of Mayor, and two Council Members for Place 2 and Place 5, establishing
procedures for that election, and providing an effective date.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The General Election for the City Council Members is set forth by the Home Rule Charter and by the Texas
Election Code and is required to be held on May 1, 2021, at which time the voters will elect persons to fill the
Mayor and City Council Places 2 and 5.

The Texas Election Code authorizes the governing bodies of political subdivisions to hold joint elections and this
Resolution orders a joint election and establishes and sets forth procedures for conducting the election.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the resolution.

Attachments
Resolution - General Election 

                                            46



Resolution No.21-02-04-09 
Page 1 of 5 

 

CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION NO. 21-02-04-09 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS, 

ORDERING AND CALLING A JOINT GENERAL ELECTION WITH DENTON 

COUNTY TO BE HELD ON MAY 1, 2021 FOR THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING 

A PERSON TO FILL THE OFFICES OF MAYOR, ONE (1) COUNCIL 

MEMBER FOR PLACE NO. 2, AND ONE (1) COUNCIL MEMBER FOR 

PLACE NO. 5, TO THE CORINTH CITY COUNCIL, EACH FOR A TERM 

OF TWO YEARS; PROVIDING FOR THE INCORPORATION OF 

PREMISES; SPECIFYING THE DATE OF ELECTION; ESTABLISHING 

PROCEDURES FOR THE ELECTION; PROVIDING FOR 

ADMINISTRATION OF A JOINT GENERAL ELECTION BY DENTON 

COUNTY; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION AND POSTING OF NOTICE 

OF ELECTION; PROVIDING AN AGREEMENT WITH DENTON COUNTY; 

ESTABLISHING DATES FOR CANVASSING; PROVIDING A 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Corinth, Texas, (the "City"), is a home rule city acting under its Charter 
adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 9 of 
the Local Government Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 3.004 of the Texas Election Code, (the “Election Code”), provides that 

the governing body of a municipality shall be the authority to order a Joint General Election; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to and hereby calls a Joint General Election for the 
purpose of electing a Mayor and two (2) City Council members to the City of Corinth City Council, 
such election to be held as set forth by Charter and by the Texas Election Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Joint General Election shall be held on May 1, 2021, at which time the voters 
will elect persons to fill the office of Mayor and City Council Places 2 and 5, of the Corinth City 
Council, each for a term of two (2) years; and 

WHEREAS, the Texas Election Code authorizes the governing bodies of politica l 
subdivisions to hold joint elections; and  

WHEREAS, the City is entering into an Interlocal Agreement for Election Services with 
Denton County to provide election administration meeting the requirements of the Election Code, a 
copy of which agreement shall be incorporated into this Resolution upon approval and execution by 

Denton County and the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Joint General Election shall be conducted in accordance with the Election 
Code under the jurisdiction of the Denton County Elections Administrator (the “Elect ion 
Administrator”); and 

WHEREAS, Section 85.004 of the Election Code provides that an election order and the 
election notice must state the location of the main early voting polling place; and 

                                            47



Resolution No.21-02-04-09 
Page 2 of 5 

 

WHEREAS, by this Resolution, it is the intention of the City Council to hold a joint general 
election, to designate early voting polling location, to  set forth dates for canvassing of the 

Joint General Election and to establish and set forth the procedures for conducting the 
Election as required by the Texas Election Code and City Charter; and  

WHEREAS , the City Council finds that upon the canvassing of the returns of the May 
1, 2021 election, this Resolution and election order shall be enacted as set forth herein.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CORINTH, TEXAS, THAT: 

Section 1.    Incorporation of Premises.  The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby 
incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if fully set forth herein.    

Section 2.      Joint General Election Called.  A Joint General Election, (the “Election”), is hereby 
ordered and called to elect a Mayor, one (1) Council member to Place No. 2, and one (1) Council 
member to Place No. 5, each to serve two (2) year terms on the City Council of the City of Corinth.   
The Election shall be held at the Corinth City Hall, 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas 76208, on 

the 1st day of May 2021, from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. 

Section 3.          Application for Place on Ballot.  Election Code Section 141.001, as amended, and 
Section 3.03 of the Corinth Home Rule Charter set forth the qualifications for a person to be eligib le 
for a public elective office (“Qualified Persons”).   Qualified Persons may file as candidates for office 

by filing a sworn application in the Office of the City Secretary not earlier than January 13, 2021 and not 
later than 5:00 p.m. on February 12, 2021 (the “Filing Period”).  Applications will be accepted in the 

Office of the City Secretary during regular business hours during the Filing Period in accordance with 
the Election Code; except for February 12, 2021, on which date applications will be accepted from 
7:30 a.m. until 5:00 p.m.   

Section 4.         Dates and Hours of Early Voting – Main Early Voting Location.  The Elect ion 
Administrator, Frank Phillips, shall serve as the Early Voting Clerk.  Deputy early voting 
judges/clerks will be appointed as needed to process early voting mail and to conduct early voting.  

Further, the Elections Administrator and/or the Early Voting Clerk are hereby authorized to appoint 
the members of the Early Voting Ballot Board and the presiding judge and alternate judge in 

accordance with the requirements of the Election Code.     

The main early voting place is located at Denton County Elections Administration, 701 Kimberly 
Drive, Suite A111, Denton, Texas 76208 and voting shall occur as provided herein. Early Voting 

hours are Monday, April 19, 2021 through Saturday, April 24, 2021 from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 
Sunday, April 25, 2021 from 11 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., and from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Monday and 
Tuesday, April 26-27, 2021.  Early Voting at Corinth City Hall, 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas 

76208 shall occur on the same dates and times listed herein.  Early voting shall be conducted by the 
Early Voting Clerk, at the main early voting polling location listed above. 

Early voting by mail shall be conducted in conformance with the requirements of the Election Code.  
Ballot applications and ballots voted by mail shall be sent to:  Early Voting Clerk, 701 Kimberly 
Drive, Suite A101, Denton, Texas 76208 (the official mailing address of the Early Voting Clerk).  The 

                                            48



Resolution No.21-02-04-09 
Page 3 of 5 

 

voting precincts for the Election shall be designated by their respective county precinct numbers.   
 

Early voting by personal appearance shall be conducted at the times on the dates and at the locations 
designated herein and on Exhibit “A” hereto (described below) in accordance with this section.   

Early voting location and times may be changed, or additional early voting locations may be added 
by the Denton County Elections Administrator without further action of the City Council or 
amendment to this Resolution, as is necessary for the proper conduct of the Election.  

Section 5.            Governing Law and Qualified Voters. The Election shall be held in accordance 
with the Constitution of the State of Texas and the Election Code, and all resident qualified voters of 

the City shall be eligible to vote at the election. 
 
Section 6. Publication and Posting of Notice of Election. Notice of the election shall be 

given as required by the Election Code, and the Charter of the City of Corinth.  Notice shall be provided 
by posting a notice containing a substantial copy of this Resolution in both English and Spanish at 
Corinth City Hall on the bulletin board used for posting notices of the meetings of the City Council and 
by publication of such notice one time in a newspaper of general circulation published within the City; 

the date of the publication to be not earlier than the 30th day or later than the 10th day before the Election 
day.  The notice shall contain information as provided by the Election Administrator regarding polling 
places and early voting and such other matters as required by law. 

Section 7. Denton County to Conduct Election / Election Contract.  The Election shall be 
conducted in accordance with the Election Code under the jurisdiction of the Denton County 

Elections Administrator (the “Election Administrator”), pursuant to an Election Services Contract 
between the City and Denton County, and other participating entities, if any, as described therein, 

(the “Contract”), a copy of which Contract shall be incorporated herein as Exhibit “A” upon its fina l 
approval and execution by the City.   Voting shall be by electronic method. 

The Mayor, the City Manager or designee, is authorized to amend or supplement any and all contracts 
for the administration of the Election and any Special Election, including without limitation the 

Election Services Contract, to the extent required for the Election to be conducted in an efficient and 
legal manner as determined by the Election Administrator and in accordance with the Election Code. 
In the event that no election is necessary, the City Secretary shall notify the County and shall 

present the City Council a Resolution or Ordinance cancelling the election.  

Section 8.      Canvass of Election.  Pursuant to Section 67.002 of the Election Code, the City Council will 

canvass the election not earlier than May 4, 2021 and not later than May 12, 2021.  Notice of the time and 

place for canvass shall be posted on the official bulletin board of the City in the same manner as required by 

the Open Meetings Act for City Council meetings in accordance with Chapter 551 of the Local Government 

Code. 

Section 9.       Necessary Actions. The Mayor and the City Secretary of the City, in consultation with 

the City Attorney, are hereby authorized and directed to take any and all actions necessary to comply 

with the provisions of the Election Code or other applicable law in carrying out and conducting the 

election, whether or not expressly authorized herein. 

 

Section 10.     Severability.  If any section, article, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word in this 
Resolution or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid or unconstitutional by 

                                            49



Resolution No.21-02-04-09 
Page 4 of 5 

 

a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 
of this Resolution, and the City Council hereby declares it would have passed such remaining portions 

of this Resolution despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

Section 11.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of February, 2021. 

       
       CITY OF CORINTH 
        
 
       
             
       Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Lana Wylie, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Patricia Adams, City Attorney 
 
 
 

  • 

 

                                            50



Resolution No.21-02-04-09 
Page 5 of 5 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
JOINT ELECTION AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF CORINTH, TEXAS AND DENTON COUNTY 
 

Incorporated by Reference Upon Approval and Execution by the City of Corinth 

 

                                            51



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    5.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 02/04/2021  
Title: Resolution Designating a Central Community Gathering Space and Related Infrastructure

Venue Project
Submitted For: Jason Alexander, Director  Submitted By: Jason Alexander, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager
Strategic Goals: Land Development

Infrastructure Development
Economic Development
Citizen Engagement & Proactive
Government
Regional Cooperation

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas designating a central community
gathering space and related infrastructure as a venue project (the "Venue Project”) and designating a method of
financing the Venue Project, a new short-term motor vehicle rental tax at a rate not to exceed five (5) percent, in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 334 of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Chapter 334 of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended, allows municipalities and counties to impose a
wide variety of taxes as methods to finance tourism, sports and community venues. One of those taxes is the seldom
used short-term motor vehicle rental tax. The short-term motor vehicle rental tax requires the approval of voters ---
and the tax cannot exceed five (5) percent and can only be imposed on motor vehicle rentals of thirty (30) days or
less. If the tax is approved, the revenues generated may be used to finance the venue and its related infrastructure
(e.g., "any store, restaurant, on-site hotel, concession, automobile parking facility, area transportation facility, road,
street, water or sewer facility, park, or other on-site or off-site improvement that relates to and enhances the use,
value, or appeal of a venue, including areas adjacent to the venue, and any other expenditure reasonably necessary
to construct, improve, renovate, or expand a venue, including an expenditure for environmental remediation").
Also, if the tax is approved, it becomes effective by ordinance (municipality) or order (county) --- and it expires
after all bonds and other obligations are paid in full.

Imposition of a short-term motor vehicle rental tax in Corinth can generate additional revenue to finance the central
community gathering space and its related infrastructure while simultaneously reducing financial dependence on the
Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) to stimulate private and public investment within the community's urban
core. In addition, the imposition of the tax can enhance economic development efforts to attract, expand and retain
businesses --- and in particular --- restaurants and retailers that benefit from the proximity to the multi-purpose
amphitheater and the future transit stop.

The businesses with on-site motor vehicle rentals that may be impacted by the imposition of a short-term motor
vehicle rental tax include:
  
With Service Only With or Without Service
Caliber Collision Harley-Davidson
Classic of Denton  
Classic Pre-Owned of Denton  
Gunn Nissan of Denton  
Huffines Kia of Corinth  

                                            52



Huffines Subaru of Corinth  

In sum, imposition of a short-term motor vehicle rental tax in Corinth can prove extremely beneficial with respect
to attracting new investment to the urban core and creating a thriving mixed-use district focused around a transit
stop in support of the goals of the Strategic Plan and the TIRZ.

However, before the City can call an election on the imposition of a short-term motor vehicle rental tax, the City
Council must first approve a resolution designating the venue project and the method for financing the venue
project among other things. A resolution designating the central community gathering space and its related
infrastructure as a venue project and designating a new short-term motor vehicle rental tax as the method for
financing is attached for the City Council's consideration and action. Further, it should be noted that the City
Council must determine a rate for the short-term motor vehicle rental tax. The short-term motor vehicle rental tax
can be imposed in increments of one-eighth (1/8) of one percent, but the rate cannot exceed a maximum of five (5)
percent.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Resolution as presented and impose a short-term motor vehicle
tax at a rate not to exceed five (5) percent in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 334 of the Texas Local
Government Code, as amended.

Attachments
Resolution - Creating Venue Project 
Exhibits 

                                            53



 

RESOLUTION NO.    

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, 

TEXAS, DESIGNATING A CENTRAL COMMUNITY GATHERING 

SPACE AND RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE AS A SPORTS AND 

COMMUNITY VENUE PROJECT, (THE “VENUE PROJECT”), AT THE 

PROPOSED LOCATION OF 3221 CORINTH PARKWAY, CORINTH, 

TEXAS 76208, AND DESIGNATING A METHOD OF FINANCING THE 

VENUE PROJECT, A SHORT TERM MOTOR VEHICLE RENTAL TAX 

AT A RATE OF 5%, IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 334 OF THE 

TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, AS AMENDED; PROVIDING 

FOR THE INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; PROVIDING FOR THE 

DESIGNATION OF A CENTRAL COMMUNITY GATHERING SPACE 

AND RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE AS A SPORTS AND COMMUNITY 

VENUE PROJECT; PROVIDING A METHOD OF FINANCING THE 

VENUE PROJECT; PROVIDING A CUMULATIVE REPEALER CLAUSE; 

PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Corinth, Texas, (the “City”), is a home rule city acting under its 

Charter adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and 
Chapter 9 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 334 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes a municipa lity 
to provide for the planning, acquisition, establishment, development and construction of sports and 

community venue projects and associated taxes to fund such venue projects, if approved by the 
voters of the municipality; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 334.021 of the Texas Local Government Code requires a 

municipality, by resolution, to designate venue projects, including related infrastructure, and the 
proposed method of financing such venue projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 334.022 of the Texas Local Government Code requires the City to 
send this Resolution designating the Venue Project as a sports and community venue project 

pursuant to Chapter 334 of the Texas Local Government Code, and its proposed method of 
financing, to the Texas Comptroller for the Comptroller to perform an analysis to determine if 
approval and implementation of the Resolution will have a significant negative festival impact on 

state revenue; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 334.001(5) of the Texas Local Government Code defines a “sports 
and community venue project” as a venue and related infrastructure that is planned, acquired, 

established, developed, constructed, or renovated under Chapter 334 of the Texas Local 
Government Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 334.001(4) of the Texas Local Government Code defines “venue” 
as an arena, coliseum, stadium, or other type of area of facility that is planned for civic or 

community use and for which a fee for admission is charged or is planned to be charged; and 
 

                                            54



 

WHEREAS, Section 334.001(3) of the Texas Local Government Code defines “related 
infrastructure” as any store, restaurant, on-site hotel, concession, automobile parking facility, area 

transportation facility, road, street, water or sewer facility, park, or other on-site or off-site 
improvement that relates to and enhances the use, value, or appeal of a venue, including areas 

adjacent to the venue, and any other expenditure reasonably necessary to construct, improve, 
renovate, or expand a venue, including an expenditure for environmental remediation; and 
 

WHEREAS, once the Texas Comptroller has determined that this Resolution does not 
have a significant negative fiscal impact on state revenue, the City Council may call and hold an 

election to ascertain whether to authorize the Venue Project and adopt a short-term motor 
vehicle rental tax at a rate of 5% to finance the Venue Project, after giving notice of such election 

as required by Chapter 4 of the Texas Elections Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it appropriate to proceed with the process as 
outlined in Chapter 334 of the Texas Local Government Code for the planning, acquisition, 
establishment, development and construction of a sports and community venue project, the proposed 

Venue Project, as further described and depicted in Exhibits “A” and “B”, attached hereto and 
incorporated as if fully set forth herein; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CORINTH, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

 Section 1.    Incorporation of Premises.  The above recitals are true and correct and are 
hereby incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 
 

Section 2.    Designation of Venue Project.  The City Council of the City of Corinth has 

determined it necessary and appropriate to designate a central community gathering space and related 
infrastructure, the Venue Project, with a proposed location of 3221 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas 
76208, and further described and depicted in Exhibits “A” and “B”, as a sports and community venue 

project pursuant to Section 334.021 of the Texas Local Government Code. 
 

 Section 3.    Method of Financing Venue Project. The City Council of the City of Corinth 
hereby proposes a short-term motor vehicle rental tax, authorized by Section 334.102 of the Texas 

Local Government Code, at a rate of 5%, to fund the Venue Project, upon approval of a majority 
of qualified voters at an election called and held under Section 334.024 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. 
 

Section 4.    Cumulative Repealer.  This Resolution shall be cumulative of all other 

resolutions and shall not repeal any of the provisions of such resolutions except for those instances 
where there are direct conflicts with the provisions of this Resolution. Resolutions, or parts 

thereof, in force at the time this Resolution shall take effect and that are inconsistent with this 
Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent that they are inconsistent with this Resolution. 
 

Section 5.    Severability. If any section, article, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or 
word in this Resolution or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid or 

unconstitutional by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portions of this Resolution, and the City Council hereby declares it would have 

                                            55



 

passed such remaining portions of this Resolution despite such invalidity, which remaining 
portions shall remain in full force and effect.  

 
Section 6.    Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this              day of  , 2021. 
 

 

CITY OF CORINTH 
 

 
_________________________ 
Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

____________________________ 
Lana Wylie, City Secretary 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

____________________________ 
Patricia A. Adams, City Attorney 
 

 

 

                                            56



                                            57



Exhibit B 
Proposed Site for Venue Project 

                                            58



1/22/2020, 3:48:15 PM 

Planned Venue Project - City of Corinth 

3221 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas 
0 0.01 

0 0.03 

1:2,257 

0.03 

0.05 

Esri , Inc , City of Naperville, llinois, City of Corinth 

0.06 mi 

0.1 km 

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS 

Esri., Inc., City of Naperville, llinois I City of Corinth I The City of Corinth I 
                                            59



                                            60


	Agenda
	AI_2231_Policy Governance
	AI_2233_Communication Strategic Plan
	       ATT_Presentation
	AI_2221_Technology Services Update
	AI_2216_An Update and Discussion on Signature Community Gathering Space in Agora
	AI_2163_CWD Annual Review
	AI_2235_January 14, 2021, Workshop Session Minutes
	       ATT_January 14, 2021 Workshop Session Minutes
	AI_2236_January 14, 2021, Regular Session Minutes
	       ATT_January 14, 2021 Regular Session Minutes
	AI_2229_Resolution Ordering a Joint General Election
	       ATT_Resolution - General Election
	AI_2237_Resolution Designating a Central Community Gathering Space and Related Infrastructure Venue Project
	       ATT_Resolution - Creating Venue Project
	       ATT_Exhibits

